
 

 

 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Monday 

May 18, 2020 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting will be held solely 

by electronic means. Please see below for detail. 
 

 

 

1 

The public will not be allowed to physically attend this meeting; however, the meeting will be livestreamed on 
YouTube at http://franklincounty.today. Citizens may also view or listen to the meeting via Zoom. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81639658146  
 

Join Via Telephone 
1-301-715-8592 
1-312-626-6799   

 
Webinar ID: 816 3965 8146 

 

 
6:55 P.M. - Season of Prayer - Commissioner Mark Speed 
 

7:00 P.M. - Official Meeting Begins - Call to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll Call – Chairman Sidney Dunston 

 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. May 4, 2020 Minutes 
B. Releases, Adjustments, Refunds and Tax Collection Rate 
C. Adjournment of the 2020 Board of Equalization & Review 
D. Surplus of Glock 17 handgun (serial #VUS274) valued at approximately $360 to sell 

to retiring officer Bruce Baker in the amount of $1 
E. Budget Ordinance Amendment #6 (Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 159-

15, the County Finance Officer is requesting a budget ordinance amendment in the 
amount of $58,946 to amend the General Fund to recognize Board action from 
previous meetings, and additional funding from DHHS for Duke Energy Progress – 
Energy Neighbor Fund.) 

F. Project Budget Ordinance for Airport Pavement Rehabilitation Design and Bid in the 
amount of $570,000 

G. Audit Contract for FYE 2020/Engagement Letter 
H. Notice of Land and Water Conservation Fund Grant Requirements and Restrictions 

on Property 
 

 Please note each vote 

requires a roll call vote 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81639658146


 

2 

2. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

This is the time set aside by the Board of Commissioners to allow individuals to address 
the Board on issues concerning the county. 
 
Members of the public who would like to make public comments MUST register by 
emailing publiccomments@franklincountync.us before 12:00 pm (noon) on Monday, 
May 18, 2020. You must include your name, address, comment topic, phone number you 
will be calling from and email address. You will be recognized (by video or phone call 
using the instructions listed at the beginning of this agenda) for comments in the order 
that you registered. The time limit for each speaker shall be five minutes with a total 
time limit set aside for informal public comments totaling 30 minutes. Vulgarity and 
abusive comments will not be tolerated. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING: COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Staff has been working with McGill & Associates for the past year in order to update the 
County’s Comprehensive Development Plan (CDP). The purpose of the Comprehensive 
Plan is to identify a desired vision for the County’s future, identify community priorities, 
and articulate strategies to address community priorities. The entire CDP can be viewed 
at https://www.franklincountync.us/services/planning-and-inspections/comprehensive-
development-plan.  
 
Members of the public who would like to participate in the public hearing can share their comments in one 
of two methods: 

 

• Share comments during the meeting using Zoom via audio or video. If you wish to 
address the Board, you must register at publiccomments@franklincountync.us before 
12:00 pm (noon) on Monday, May 18, 2020. Please include your name, address, public 
hearing topic, phone number you will be calling from and email address. You will be 
recognized by the Chairman for comments in the order that you registered. 

• Email written comments to publiccomments@franklincountync.us before 12:00 pm 
(noon) on Monday, May 18, 2020. Please include your name, address and public 
hearing topic. Comments will be shared with the Board and made part of the official 
record. Written comments received within 24 hours after the hearing is closed will 
also be shared with the Board and made a part of the official record.  

 
ACTION REQUESTED: Conduct public hearing and consider approval of the CDP 
at a later date.  

 
4. 2020-2021 BUDGET PRESENTATION 

 
The Board will receive the budget proposal and will be asked to call for a public hearing 
on June 1, 2020 in order to receive public comment on the budget proposal. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Receive presentation and call for public hearing on June 1, 
2020.  

 
 

mailto:publiccomments@franklincountync.us
https://www.franklincountync.us/services/planning-and-inspections/comprehensive-development-plan
https://www.franklincountync.us/services/planning-and-inspections/comprehensive-development-plan
mailto:publiccomments@franklincountync.us
mailto:publiccomments@franklincountync.us


 

3 

5. UPDATE: COVID-19 
 

Health Director Scott LaVigne will provide an update on the pandemic.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: None.  
 

6. YOUNGSVILLE MAIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT - UTILITIES 
 

The Town of Youngsville is planning to undertake a road work project on Main Street 
that is funded through federal funds and anticipating to bid out the project in June 2020.  
The county is working with the Town to complete the design for the utility 
rehabilitation and wishes to adopt a resolution allowing the County Manager to 
negotiate a contract with an engineering firm. 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: Consider approving Resolution Exempting Franklin County 
from GS 143-64.31 for Youngsville Main Street Utility Improvements.  
 

7. BROADBAND UPDATE 
 

Assistant County Manager Kim Denton will provide an update on Broadband activities 
in the County.  The need for broadband services has been particularly highlighted as a 
result of the COVID-19 Crisis.  She will introduce Alan Fitzpatrick, CEO of Open 
Broadband LLC, who will provide an update on progress related to the implementation 
of Open Broadband’s fixed wireless services in Franklin County. Open Broadband LLC 
representatives Kent Winrich, Chief Technology Officer and Alan Helias, Area Manager 
will also be in attendance. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: None.  

 
8. APPOINTMENTS 
 

Franklin County Community Advisory Council (CAC) 
 

The Board is asked to consider appointing 7-15 voting members to the CAC. The 
suggested membership is as follows: 

• Alma Rodriguez  

• Cedric Jones  

• Crishna Murray 

• Deborah Fowler  

• Heather Lewis  

• Kathleen Flaherty  

• Mary Jo Van Horne 

• Rhonda Schuhler 

• Tracy Dunston  

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
 



 

4 

10. BOARD, MANAGER AND CLERK’S COMMENTS 
 

This is the time set aside for the Board of County Commissioners, the County Manager, 
and the Clerk to the Board to report on various activities.  The Board may also discuss 
other items of interest. 

 

11. CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board is asked to conduct a closed session pursuant to North Carolina General 
Statute 143-318.11 (a) (3) Attorney-Client Privileged Communication. 





F
ran

klin
 C

o
u

n
ty

T
ax C

o
llecto

r: D
an

iel W
illiam

s
P

h
o

n
e: (919) 496-2172

F
ax: (919) 496-1630

E
m

ail: T
axG

IS
@

fran
klin

co
u

n
tyn

c.u
s

F
R

A
N

K
L

IN
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 T

A
X

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 503, 215 E
. N

A
S

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

L
O

U
IS

B
U

R
G

, N
C

 27549

G
enerated on: 05-01-2020

F
or 2019-01-01 to 2020-04-30

A
 R

 S
u

m
m

ary R
ep

o
rt

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
Y

E
A

R
C

A
T

E
B

E
G

B
A

L
B

IL
L

IN
G

R
E

L
E

A
S

E
S

A
D

JU
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

A
D

J B
IL

L
S

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

R
E

F
U

N
D

S
D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

S
A

D
J

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

E
N

D
 B

A
L

IN
T

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

IN
T

R
E

F
U

N
D

S
A

D
J P

M
T

S
 +

IN
T

%P
A

ID

F
R

A
N

K
LIN

C
O

U
N

T
Y

2019
P

P
0.00

4,541,787.94
-47.39

-104,238.56
4,437,501.99

-4,280,749.28
3,612.99

-6,585.85
-4,283,722.14

153,779.85
-9,838.14

4.31
-4,293,560.28

96.53

F
R

A
N

K
LIN

C
O

U
N

T
Y

2019
R

E
0.00

38,786,837.19
-534.37

-76,420.16
38,709,882.66

-37,725,263.11
80,828.82

-121,698.03
-37,766,132.32

943,750.34
-98,074.96

793.69
-37,864,207.28

97.56

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L: T

Y
P

E
 +

Y
E

A
R

2019
P

P
0.00

4,541,787.94
-47.39

-104,238.56
4,437,501.99

-4,280,749.28
3,612.99

-6,585.85
-4,283,722.14

153,779.85
-9,838.14

4.31
-4,293,560.28

96.53

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L: T

Y
P

E
 +

Y
E

A
R

2019
R

E
0.00

38,786,837.19
-534.37

-76,420.16
38,709,882.66

-37,725,263.11
80,828.82

-121,698.03
-37,766,132.32

943,750.34
-98,074.96

793.69
-37,864,207.28

97.56

T
O

T
A

L
9999

0.00
43,328,625.13

-581.76
-180,658.72

43,147,384.65
-42,006,012.39

84,441.81
-128,283.88

-42,049,854.46
1,097,530.19

-107,913.10
798.00

-42,157,767.56
97.46



Item 1-C 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet    
 
Requested Meeting Date: 18 May 2020      # of attachment (s)    
 

 
Item Title (as it should appear on the agenda): Adjournment of the 2020 Board of Equalization & Review 
 
Initiated by (Name, Job Title):  Dan Williams, Tax Administrator 
 
Board action proposed:  Adjourn the 2020 Board of Equalization & Review 
 

Is this a consent agenda item? ☒ Yes ☐ No 
 

Is a public hearing needed? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 
Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please check all that apply. 
 

☐ County Manager   ☐ County Attorney   ☐ Finance Director 
 

 
Summary of Request: 
 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 105-322, the 2020 Franklin County Board of Equalization & Review 
adjourns this evening.  By adjourning, the Board of Equalization & Review closes the statutory period during 
which county taxpayers may appeal their values for Franklin County real and personal property for the current 
tax year.  Even though the Board is adjourning, all unresolved appeals which were submitted during the appeal 
timeframe (January 1st through present), will be heard/resolved at a future date yet to be determined. 
 
 
 
 



kking
Typewritten Text
Item 1-D





 

 

 

County Of Franklin 
113 Market Street 

Louisburg, North Carolina 27549 
Telephone: 919-496-3182 

Fax: 919-496-2683 
 

 
Item 1-E 

 
Office of Finance 
Jamie Holtzman 

Director 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #6

     BE IT ORDAINED  by the Board of Commissioners of the  County

 of  Franklin, North  Carolina, that pursuant  to North  Carolina 

 General Statute 159-15,  the following amendment be made to the

 annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

 Section 1. To amend the General Fund to recognize Board action from 

previous meetings, and additional funding from DHHS for Duke Energy 

Progress- Energy Neighbor Fund.

Amount

 Expenditures      Account # of Increase

_________________________________________   ______________ __________________

Transfer to Airport Fund (Project Match) 10-650-0590 57,000$          

DSS - Duke Energy Project Share 10-612-0420 1,946$           

Total 58,946$          

==================

Amount

 Revenues      Account # of Increase

_____________________________________   ______________ __________________

GF Fund Balance 10-399-0000 57,000$          

DSS Duke Energy Progress Energy 10-612-0420 1,946$           

Total 58,946$          

==================

 Section 2.  Copies of this amendment  shall be furnished to the 

 Clerk of the Board of Commissioners, the Budget Officer, and the

 Finance Officer for their direction.

 Adopted this 18th day of June 2020.

Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners

Clerk to the Board

 



 

 

 

County Of Franklin 
113 Market Street 

Louisburg, North Carolina 27549 
Telephone: 919-496-3182 

Fax: 919-496-2683 
 

 

Item 1-F 
 

Office of Finance 
Jamie Holtzman 

Director 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 

PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE 

AIRPORT PAVEMENT REHABILIATION DESIGN AND BID 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Franklin County Board of Commissioners pursuant to North Carolina 

General Statutes 159-8 and 159-13.2, the following project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

 

SECTION 1: The project authorized is to design and bid the rehabilitation of the  

Triangle North Executive Airport pavement to include runway, taxiways, and apron areas.  

Additionally, the geometry will be revised to meet current FAA standards. 

 

SECTION 2: The following revenues are available to complete the project: 

 

 NC Department of Transportation Grant                                    $ 513,000 

            County Funds                                                                                   57,000       

            Total                                                                                            $ 570,000  

 

SECTION 3: The following line item is created for this project and line item appropriation is 

hereby approved: 

 

 Project costs (36244.43.11.1)                                                     $ 570,000 

           

SECTION 4: The County’s Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain sufficient detailed 

accounting records to provide the accounting for the recordation of revenues and expenses for 

this project. 

 

SECTION 5: The Finance Officer is directed to report quarterly on the financial status of the 

project and the total revenues received. 

 

SECTION 6: Copies of this ordinance shall be made available to the Budget Officer and the 

Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project. 

 

THIS ORDINANCE ADOPTED THIS 18th  DAY OF MAY, 2020. 

 

_______________________________________ 

SIDNEY E. DUNSTON, CHAIRMAN 

 

_______________________________________ 

KRISTEN G. KING, CLERK 



Item 1-G 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet    
 
Requested Meeting Date: May 18, 2020      # of attachment (s)  2  
 

 
Item Title (as it should appear on the agenda):  Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Contract and Engagement Letter 
 
Initiated by (Name, Job Title): Jamie Holtzman, Finance Director 
 
Board action proposed:  Approve FY 2020 Audit Contract and Engagement Letter and authorize Chairman 
Dunston to sign 
 

Is this a consent agenda item? ☒ Yes ☐ No 
 

Is a public hearing needed? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 
Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please check all that apply. 
 

☒ County Manager   ☐ County Attorney   ☒ Finance Director 
 

 
Summary of Request: 
 
Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans, & Company, LLP has prepared the Fiscal Year 2020 audit contract.  The and 
contract is for a total of $74,200.  There is an additional $3,350 fee per major program over the three that are 
included in the audit fee well as an additional $1,000 fee per group of 10 errors found over the 15 included in the 
audit fee if needed.  
 
 
 









































Item 3 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet    
 
Requested Meeting Date:        # of attachment (s)  1  
 

 
Item Title (as it should appear on the agenda): Comprehensive Development Plan 
 
Initiated by (Name, Job Title): Scott Hammerbacher, AICP, Planning & Inspections Director 
 
Board action proposed: Consider approval of the Comprehensive Development Plan 
 

Is this a consent agenda item? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 

Is a public hearing needed? ☒ Yes ☐ No 
 
Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please check all that apply. 
 

☒ County Manager   ☐ County Attorney   ☐ Finance Director 
 

 
Summary of Request: 
Staff has been working with McGill & Associates for the past year in order to update the County’s 
Comprehensive Development Plan (CDP) which was last updated in November of 2000.  The purpose of the 
Comprehensive Plan is to identify a desired vision for the County’s future, identify community priorities, and 
articulate strategies to address community priorities. The Comprehensive Development Plan is anticipated to 
be a key policy and action document for the County, to be used by staff, government agencies, economic 
development entities, elected officials, boards and commissions, developers, property owners, and residents as 
a guide for future land use development, capital investments, and growth management decisions over the next 
20 years and beyond. Funding for this endeavor was appropriated as part of this year’s budget. 
 
The entire CDP can be found at the following link https://www.franklincountync.us/services/planning-and-
inspections/comprehensive-development-plan. Staff has included for your review recommendations set forth 
in the draft plan to help steer development in a desired manner for the next two decades pending adoption. The 
critical element of the CDP will be implementation of recommendations in order to create predictability for 
forthcoming development while enhancing quality of life for residents.  
 
 
 











































































































Item 6 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet    
 
Requested Meeting Date: May 18, 2020     # of attachment(s):  4  
 

 
Item Title (as it should appear on the agenda): Youngsville Main Street Improvements Project – Utilities 
 
Initiated by (Name, Job Title): Christopher Doherty, Public Utilities Director 
 
Board action proposed: Approving resolution and project as presented 
 

Is this a consent agenda item? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 

Is a public hearing needed? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 
Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please check all that apply. 
 

☒ County Manager   ☒ County Attorney   ☒ Finance Director 
 

 
Summary of Request: 
 
The Town of Youngsville is planning to undertake a road work project on Main Street that is funded through 
federal funds, and anticipating to bid out the project in June 2020.  When the department became aware of this 
project, we approached the Town to discuss a partnership to upgrade the utilities during construction, “Dig 
Once”.  The department discussed with the engineer of record for Youngsville, to see if they can do a utility 
design.  Once confirmed a purchase order was issued to the Town of Youngsville for the department’s share of 
design costs.  The design relocated all services to the front within the right-of-way and abandon a 2-inch water 
main and move those services to the 6-inch main.  During review of current conditions of the utilities (water and 
sewer), it was determined that a new water line would be beneficial, as the current water line is a 6-inch cast 
iron.  Cast iron water line was installed approximately 40+ years ago and is approaching its useful life, in addition 
to the outside diameter is not consistent making repair couplings and parts difficult to locate.  The new water 
line will be an 8-inch ductile iron pipe which will be encased under the railroad crossing.   The design engineer 
was hired by the Town of Youngsville and the department would like to use Kimley Horn for continuity on the 
project. 
 
Below is a breakdown of the engineering and construction costs: 
 

Engineering Description Cost 
Base design (existing 6” line remain in place) – PO#20201001 15,652.27 
Additional design (replacing 6” line with 8” line) 32,815.56 
Total Engineering and design $48,467.83 

 
 



Item 6 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

 

 

To use Kimley Horn as the engineer to design the utilities upgrade, a resolution has to be passed to comply 
with General Statute 143-64.31 to exempt the county from provisions in GS 143-64.31.  The county is able to do 
the exemption as the design costs are below $50,000.   

Construction Estimate Description Cost 
Base construction 162,900.00 
Additional construction 703,990.00 
Total Construction $866,890.00 

 
A meeting was held between the county manager’s office, finance department and the public utilities department 
to coordinate efforts moving forward.  The finance department will be coming at a future meeting with a project 
ordinance including engineering, permits, and construction.  All funds for this project will be from the Utility 
Fund.  A portion of the construction ($49,650) is eligible for funding from CAMPO, which has been approved 
by their executive board. The Public Utilities Department has requested construction funds in the FY 20-21 
capital plan submittal for this project.  It is the recommendation of the department that the Board of County 
Commissioners approve this resolution, project and funding. 
 
 
 



“Equal Opportunity Employer” 

 
 

TO: 
Angela L. Harris, County Manager 
Kim Denton, Assistant County Manager 
Jamie Holtzman, Finance Director 

FROM: Christopher Doherty, Public Utilities Director 

DATE: March 30, 2020 

SUBJECT: Kimley Horn (Engineering Firm) 

 
The Town of Youngsville has had Kimley Horn as their consulting engineering firm for multiple 
years for many different tasks before the Main Street project.  Since they had the relationship with 
Kimley Horn, they went with them for the design work for Main Street project.  The request to use 
Kimely Horn for the design for the utility improvements is to keep continuity with the project, time 
efficiencies, and have design coordination communications with one engineering firm.   
 
I have had the pleasure to work with Kimley Horn, in the past in another state and had a very 
good experience.  I recommend Franklin County to use Kimley Horn as the engineering firm on 
the Youngsville Main Street Utility Improvements Project.    
 
 
CC: Alex Fuller, Assistant Public Utilities Director 

Public Utilities 
1630 US #1 Hwy 

Youngsville, NC 27596 
Phone: 919.556.6177 

Fax: 919.556.6709 
www.franklincountync.us 



Rev. 7/18 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND KIMLEY-HORN 
AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 
 

This is Amendment Number 3 dated __February 20_, 2020 to the Agreement between the Town 
of Youngsville ("Client") and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. ("Consultant") dated April 13, 2017 
(“the Agreement") concerning the C-5604QA, Main Street Improvements Project (the "Project"). 
 
The Consultant has entered into the Agreement with Client for the furnishing of professional 
services, and the parties now desire to amend the Agreement.   
 
The Agreement is amended to include services to be performed by Consultant for compensation 
as set forth below in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, which are incorporated by 
reference. 
 

 
Consultant will perform the following additional services: 
 

• As requested by Franklin County Public Utilities, prepare utility construction plans that depict: 
o Water main replacement along Main St between College St and N. Cross St.  The 

existing cast iron 6” water main and any 2” water mains within the limits described 
will be replaced with 8” ductile iron water mains. 

o Note: Water service replacement along Main St between College St and N. Cross 
St was included in a previous supplemental agreement. 

o Sanitary sewer lateral replacement along Main St between College St and N. 
Cross St for laterals connected to the sanitary sewer main under Main St. 

• The proposed plans will be included in the C-5604QA plan set. 

• Standard details and specifications provided by Franklin County Public Utilities will be used for 
water and sewer improvements, supplemented with Kimley-Horn details as necessary.  
Existing water meter sizing will be provided by Franklin County Public Utilities. 

• Water line permitting through the State is anticipated. 

• Occupancy permitting is anticipated for water lines replaced within the CSX railroad right-of-
way. 

• Prepare proposed quantities and an Opinion of Probable Construction Cost for utility 
construction requested by Franklin County Public Utilities 

• All permit and review fees will be paid by the Client.  NCDEQ permit review fees and CSX utility 
encroachment review fees have been included as a direct costs. 

• Railroad occupancy fees are calculated by the Railroad after all permit approvals have been 
obtained and are to be paid directly by the utility owner (Franklin County). 

• Survey (quality level B SUE) of all waterlines within the project and up to two (2) geotechnical 
borings and accompanying report will be provided. 

• Additional survey, SUE, and geotechnical investigations in excess of those described above 
and deemed necessary for the design will be performed upon authorization from the Town by 
the Consultant as an additional service not covered under this scope. 

 

 
Consultant and Client agree to the following general schedule in connection with the services set 
forth above: 
 
Consultant will provide services as expeditiously as practicable based on a mutually agreed upon 
schedule. 
 

 
 
  



Rev. 7/18 

 
For the services set forth above, Client shall pay Consultant the following compensation: 
 
Kimley-Horn will perform the additional services for a lump sum of $32,815.56.  This constitutes a 
new contract value of $204,889.88.  Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the 
invoice and should include the invoice number and Kimley-Horn project number. 
 
 
CLIENT: CONSULTANT: 
 
TOWN OF YOUNGSVILLE KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
By: 

   
 
By:            

 
Name: 

   
Name: 

 
Jeffrey W. Moore, P.E. 

 
Title: 

   
Title: 

 
Senior Vice President 

 
Date: 

   
Date: 

 
2/20/2020 

 



SUMMARY

TIP NUMBER : C-5604QA

COUNTY: Franklin

SCOPE : See Above

PRIVATE ENGINEERING FIRM INITIAL FINAL
ITEM MD COST MD COST

1 Utility Construciton Design 14.750 15,100.79$        

Direct Costs 2,215.28$          

Geotechnical Subconsultant 11,250.00$        

Survey/SUE Subconsultant 4,249.49$          

TOTAL 14.750 32,815.56$        0.000

ENGINEERING FIRM: Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PREPARED BY: Nate Harvey, P.E. DATE: 01/27/20

-$                    

2



MANHOURS BY CLASSIFICATION TOTAL PROJECT PHASE

Associate

Engineer

Senior

Engineer
Engineer

Design

Engineer
Technician Manhours Mandays UTILITY CONSTRUCTION DESIGN

25% Plans

6 8 4 18 2.250 Data Collection and subconsultant coordination

2 2 1 5 0.625 Conflict Review

1 1 2 0.250 SUE Level A Recommendation

6 6 12 1.500 Site Visit

1 2 3 0.375 UC Plan setup

4 4 2 20 30 3.750 90% Design Drawings

2 4 6 0.750 Notes and Details

2 2 0.250 90% OPCC

1 2 2 5 0.625 Special Provisions

2 1 2 5 0.625 Roadway Coordination

2 2 4 0.500 Address 90% Review Comments

2 2 4 0.500 Permitting with NCDEQ

4 4 0.500 Address Permit Review Comments

2 2 2 6 0.750 Permitting with CSX

2 2 2 6 0.750 Address CSX Encroachment Review Comments

1 1 2 2 6 0.750 Issue Final UC plans, specifications, and OPCC

0 0.000

0 0.000

0 0.000

0 0.000

0 0.000

0 0.000

0 0.000

3 16 37 25 37 0

SHEET TOTAL 118 14.750

2/20/2020 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.



(A)

SUBMITTAL SHEETS SETS TOTAL

25% Plans x 0 = -$                   

90% Plans 10 x 3 = 30.00$               

100% Plans (Permitting) 10 x 4 = 40.00$               

100% Final Plans 10 x 4 = 40.00$               

Final Sealed 10 x 3 = 30.00$               

Work Sets x = -$                   

+ TOTAL BOND PLANS (22"x34") 80 x 0.42$     /sheet= 33.60$               

(B) XEROX COPIES

+ TOTAL XEROX COPIES (Say) 80 x 0.04$     /sheet= 3.20$                 

+ COVERS & BINDING (Say) 10 x 1.00$     /set= 10.00$               

* TRAVEL AND MISCELLANEOUS COSTS

(C) TRAVEL

PURPOSE of TRIP TRIPS MILES TOTAL RATE COSTS

+ Site Visit 1 x 64 = 64 x 0.535$          = 34.24$               

+ Review Meeting 1 x 64 = 64 x 0.535$          = 34.24$               

+ x = 0 x 0.535$          = -$                   

+ x = 0 x 0.535$          = -$                   

+ Other x = 0 x 0.535$          = -$                   

PER DIEM TRIPS # ATTEND TOTAL RATE COSTS

+ Breakfast x = x 8.30$            =

+ Lunch x = x 10.90$          =

+ Dinner x = x 18.70$          =

+ Lodging x = x 79.50$          =

(D) OTHER 

LIST UNITS RATE COSTS

+ NCDEQ Permit Review Fee 1 x 150.00$        = 150.00$             

+ CSX Utility Encroachment 1 x 1,950.00$     = 1,950.00$          

TOTAL DIRECT NON-SALARY COSTS = 2,215.28$          

MEETINGS AND COORDINATION

REPRODUCTION COSTS

BONDS

2/20/2020 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.



1 

 

 

 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
113 Market Street 

Louisburg, NC  27549 
 

Phone: 919.496.5994 
Fax: 919.496.2683 

 
www.franklincountync.us  

 

RESOLUTION EXEMPTING FRANKLIN COUNTY FROM GS 143-64.31 for the 
YOUNGSVILLE MAIN STREET UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

WHEREAS, G.S. 143-64.31 requires the initial solicitation and evaluation of firms to 
perform architectural, engineering, surveying, construction management-at-risk services, 
and design-build services (collectively “design services”) to be based on qualifications and 
without regard to fee; 

WHEREAS, the County proposes to enter into one or more contracts for design services 
for work on the Youngsville Main Street Utility Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, G.S. 143-64.32 authorizes units of local government to exempt contracts for 
design services from the qualifications-based selection requirements of G.S. 143-64.31 if 
the estimated fee is less than $50,000; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated fee for design services for the above-described project is less 
than $50,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Franklin County Board of County Commissioners RESOLVES: 

Section 1. The above-described project is hereby made exempt from the provisions 
of G.S. 143-64.31. 

Section 2.   The Board of Commissioners authorizes the County Manager to determine 
the best firm and enter into a contract for design engineering for the 
Youngsville Main Street Utility Improvements Project.  It is beneficial to use 
the same firm as the Town of Youngsville and will strengthen the project. 

Section 3.   This resolution shall be effective upon adoption. 

 

 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
Sidney E. Dunston     Kristen G. King 
Chairman      Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(COUNTY SEAL) 
 

 

 



PREPARED  BY:

Total 162,900.00$                      

SR ROUTE: NC96 (Main Street)

UTILITY  OWNER: LOCATION: Franklin County

Franklin County Water (Water and Sewer) CITY/TOWN: Youngsville, NC

DESCRIPTION: Potable Water Main Relocation

"Base" work as shown on submitted UC Drawings:  

Line Sec

Item Type No. Description Quantity Units Price Amount

1 D 858 Adjustment of Manholes 6 EA 1,000.00$                         6,000.00$                         

2 D 858 Adjustment of Valve Box 4 EA 1,000.00$                         4,000.00$                         

3 D SP Generic Drainage Item - Adjustment of Cleanouts 6 EA 1,000.00$                         6,000.00$                         

4 U 1510 6" Water Line 220 LF 160.00$                            35,200.00$                       

5 U 1515 Ductile Iron Water Pipe Fittings 740 LB 9.00$                                6,660.00$                         

6 U 1515 6" Valve 2 EA 2,000.00$                         4,000.00$                         

7 U 1515 Reconnect Water Meter 30 EA 1,200.00$                         36,000.00$                       

8 U 1515 Fire Hydrant 2 EA 3,000.00$                         6,000.00$                         

9 U 1515 Fire Hydrant Leg 12 LF 160.00$                            1,920.00$                         

10 U 1515 Water Service Line 900 LF 40.00$                              36,000.00$                       

11 U 1530 Abandon 6" Utility Pipe 180 LF 14.00$                              2,520.00$                         

12 U 1530 Remove Fire Hydrant 2 EA 1,800.00$                         3,600.00$                         

13 U SP Generic Utility Item - 6" Insertion Valve 1 EA 15,000.00$                       15,000.00$                       

"Base" Total 162,900.00$                    

"Additional" work as sketched in on attached PDF:

Line Sec

Item Type No. Description Quantity Units Price Amount

A1 8" Water Line (Typical size of comparable lines, higher quantity should lower unit price) 1800 LF 140.00$                            252,000.00$                    

A2 8" Valve 12 LS 2,200.00$                         26,400.00$                       

A3 Deduct 6" waterline offsets -1 LS 40,000.00$                       (40,000.00)$                     

A4 Abandon 6" Utility Pipe 1560 LF 14.00$                              21,840.00$                       

A5 Jack and Bore (16" Casing Pipe with 8" carrier through 221ft of RR Right-of-Way) 1 LS 220,000.00$                    220,000.00$                    

A6 Fire Hydrant Assembly 4 EA 5,500.00$                         22,000.00$                       

A7 Sanitary Sewer Lateral with Cleanout 13 EA 4,750.00$                         61,750.00$                       

A8 Pavement Repair 1 LS 140,000.00$                    140,000.00$                    

"Additional" Total 703,990.00$                    

Combined Total 866,890.00$                    

Note:

Project: Main Street Improvements (C-5604QA)
Utility Construction

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST 

(Base only)

This document represents an opinion of probable construction cost for "Base" items and a preliminary budgetary analysis of "Additional" items as requested by 

Franklin County.  The "Base" total listed above is based on similar projects for the scope of work shown in the Drawings.  The engineer has no control over 

actual bid pricing and makes no claims as to the accuracy of the prices herein.  The quantities for the "Additional" Total are approximate, based on 

conversations with Franklin County and may not include all items necessary to construct the work.  Prices for "Additional" items are based on similar projects, 

but due to uncertainty in the scope of work, actual prices may vary widely.

Page 1 of 1



YOUNGSVILLE MAIN STREET

UTILITIES REHABILITATION

County Commission Meeting

May 18, 2020



BACKGROUND

u

u

u

u

u

u

u

u

2



RECOMMENDATION

Relocating fire hydrants and install with break away flanges, and installing to proper 

height

Adjusting manholes to grade Adjusting and moving meters to R-O-W

3



LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION

4



RECOMMENDATION
u

u

u

5



6



Item 7 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

☐  APPROVED  

☐  DENIED 
ACTION:             DATE:    
               
               
               

 
 

Franklin County Commissioner’s Agenda Information Sheet    
 
Requested Meeting Date: May 18, 2020      # of attachment (s)    
 

 
Item Title (as it should appear on the agenda): Broadband Update 
 
Initiated by (Name, Job Title): Kim Denton, Assistant County Manager 
 
Board action proposed: None  
 

Is this a consent agenda item? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 

Is a public hearing needed? ☐ Yes ☒ No 
 
Has this item been reviewed by the appropriate staff? Please check all that apply. 
 

☒ County Manager   ☐ County Attorney   ☐ Finance Director 
 

 
Summary of Request: 
Assistant County Manager Kim Denton will provide an update on Broadband activities in the County.  The 
need for broadband services has been particularly highlighted as a result of the COVID-19 Crisis.  She will 
introduce Alan Fitzpatrick, CEO of Open Broadband LLC, who will provide an update on progress related to 
the implementation of Open Broadband’s fixed wireless services in Franklin County.    
 
 



kking
Typewritten Text
Item 8












